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SITE VISIT – MINUTES OF MEETING, Q&A  

RFP/UNDP/PETRA/73058/020/2019 

 
Assignment Name:  

Consulting Service for the Design and Construction Supervision for Two (2) Landfills in Central 

Sulawesi 

 

Date and Time: 

16 September 2019 from 09.00 hrs – 12.00 hrs (Kawatuna, Palu & Kabonga, Donggala)   

 

Closing Date: 

4 October 2019 at 1700hour (Jakarta Local Time, GMT+7)   

 

TO ALL INTERESTED BIDDERS 

 

 Introduction and Guidance 
Information Site Visit was convened with following agenda: 

1. Briefing on the rules and agenda at UNDP PETRA Palu office  
2. Explanation on scope of works as per the Term of Reference (ToR) 
3. Explanation on the locations of each site 
4. Visited Landfill in Kawatuna, Palu  
5. Q & A regarding the sites and location at Kawatuna, Palu  
6. Visited Landfill in Kabonga, Donggala 
7. Q & A regarding the sites and location at Kabonga, Donggala 
 
*Bidders were encouraged to carefully read the RFP document before 
preparing the offer and to check regularly UNDP E-tendering & UNDP website 
for any update/amendment to this tender document 
 

 
Q&A session is incorporated into the below minutes 

 
Site visit Location at Kawatuna, Palu : 

1. Landfill Kawatuna 
2. Leachate Treatment Plant  
3. Office Building 
4. Mechanical Workshop 

 
1 Q What is the condition of Biogas Installation after the earthquake? 

A The Biogas Installation was damaged because of the 2013 earthquake 

2 Q Has there been any flooding in Palu before? 

A No. There is no periodic rainy season in Palu for a long time. The soil 
structure in Palu is mostly sand that made the water is sipping into the 
ground very quickly after the rain. 
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3 Q Who built the existing Kawatuna landfill? 

A Satker PP of the Public Works. 

4 Q What is the structure of the leachate treatment plant’s pool foundation? 

A Reinforced concrete 

5 Q Is there any UKL/UPL document for this site? 

A Yes, the UKL/ UPL was made at around 2000. Dinas is still looking for the 
documents since they have lost track of the files after the 2018 earthquake. 

6 Q Can we get the Dinas Lingkungan Hidup Kota Palu organization structure ? 

A Yes. It will be posted on the e-Tendering 

7 Q How much the volume of garbage deliver to this site  per day?   

A The estimated average is 468 m3 per day. It is about 40% of total 
production garbage for Palu which is around 1,040 m3 

8 Q How many trucks are operating at this site? 

A 39 trucks with averagely 3 shifts per day.  

9 Q Where is the weight bridge location?  

A This landfill has no weight bridge yet.  

10 Q How many heavy equipment are working on this site? 

A Three machines. One Excavator production in 2011, one Bulldozer 
production in 2011 and one bulldozer (broken) produced in 1996 

11 Q How is this landfill operated at the moment? Is it sanitary? 

A No. Currently Kawatuna landfill is operated as controlled landfill. The soil 
cover was placed only after 4 - 5 days.  

12 Q How much is the capacity of this landfill? 

A The capacity of this landfill depends on the airspace. The current operating 
airspace is 1.3 hectare 

13 Q Is the purpose of perimeter fence to close/protect all facilities?  

A Yes. 

14 Q How much is the existing height for the garbage? 

A Averagely is 15 m 

15 Q Is there any electrical power on the site? 

A Yes 

16 Q Where is the source of water for this site? 

A There are 2 deep wells at this site with 90m and 120m depth. 

17 Q Is the location of mechanical workshop building is part of perimeter of area 
mentioned in the RFP? 
 

A Mechanical workshop is part of the scope in the RfP. However, the location 
of the building is not covered in the annex 4.3. The location for new 
workshop will be determined later by local government before creating the 
master plan by selected bidder. 
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Site visit Location at Kabonga, Donggala 

1 Q How many truck are operating at this site? 

A 4 trucks 

2 Q Are the scope of works included to build the workshop & office buildings? 

A No.  

3 Q Is there any electrical power in the site? 

A There is no electric power in this site. 

4 Q How much the volume of garbage deliver to this site per day? 

A Average 72 m3 per day 

5 Q Where is the source of water for this site? 

A There is a river close to the landfills  

6 Q How is the biogas system implanted in this site? 

A Currently, there is no biogas system for this site 

7 Q Where is the location for soil source? 

A It is about 100 m from this site  

8 Q Is Leachate Treatment Plant for this site part of the scope of works? 

A No but the bidder required to reconstruct the pipe of leachate collection 
and drainage system 

Attachment 1:  Organization Structure  Dinas Lingkungan Hidup Kota Palu 

 

Palu, 24 September 2019 



:

:

NIP. 19730819 199302 1 011

BAGAN STRUKTUR ORGANISASI

DINAS LINGKUNGAN HIDUP KOTA PALU

KEPALA DINAS

MOHAMMAD RIDWAN KARIM,S.Sos.,M.Si

SUB BAGIAN KEPEGAWAIAN

SEKRETARIS

Ir. FIRMAN

NIP. 19661221 199403 1 008

KELOMPOK SUB BAGIAN KEUANGAN

JABATAN DAN ASET

FUNGSIONAL MUSRIFAH, SE

NIP. 19720916 199303 2 006

PENATAAN LINGKUNGAN KERUSAKAN & PENGEMBANGAN DAN LIMBAH BAHAN BERACUN RUANG TERBUKA HIJAU

DAN UMUM

LASWI DATAU, S.E

NIP. 19630519 199010 2 002 

SUB BAGIAN PERENCANAAN

DAN PROGRAM

MOHAMAD AKBAR, SE

NIP. 19760915 200604 1 005

BIDANG TATA DAN BIDANG PENGENDALIAN PENCEMARAN BIDANG PENGELOLAAN SAMPAH BIDANG PENGELOLAAN

KAPASITAS LINGKUNGAN BERBAHAYA

TATANG SURATMAN FIRMAN, ST.M.Si Ir. TINUS SIAMPA FARID, SH AMELIA LAHEMA, S.STP,M.Adm.KP

NIP. 19810316 200801 2 024 NIP. 19840403 200903 2 002 NIP. 19820202 200801 2 037 NIP. 19830310 201101 2 004

NIP. 19741129 200012 1 003 NIP. 19640803 199303 1 011 NIP. 19730330 199303 1 003 NIP. 19800114 199810 2 002

SEKSI INVESTASI PERENCANAAN SEKSI PENANGGULANGAN DAN SEKSI PERENCANAAN DAN
SEKSI PERTAMANAN

DAN KAJIAN LINGKUNGAN PEMULIHAN KUALITAS LINGKUNGAN PENGELOLAAN SAMPAH

SILVANA, ST, MSc RINI ANGRAENI, S.Si VERAWATY, ST NUR INKAI TEKKA, ST

SEKSI PEMBINAAN DAN SEKSI PENGEMBANGAN KAPASITAS SEKSI PENGANGKUTAN

PENGAWASAN LINGKUNGAN HIDUP DAN SAMPAH SEKSI DEKORASI KOTA

PERAN SERTA MASYARAKAT

AGUS WINARNO, ST ISKANDAR, SP ARIS ISDARIANSYAH ISMAIL, S.H.

NIP.  19730818 200701 1 015 NIP. 19710227 200012 1 002 NIP. 19640506 198603 1 018 NIP. 19821022 201001 1 013

SEKSI PENGADUAN, PEMANTAUAN SEKSI KONSERVASI SUMBER SEKSI KEMITRAAN PENGELOLAAN

DAN PENATAAN LINGKUNGAN DAYA LINGKUNGAN SAMPAH, PEMBERSIHAN JALAN DAN SEKSI PEMAKAMAN

LIMBAH BAHAN BERACUN BERBAHAYA

DESI LINA, SH. MS.i DESTI RATTE ALO, ST MOHAMMAD SAIFUL. S.Sos.,M.AP SUHARNI, S.Sos 

NIP. 19761212 200012 2 004 NIP. 19811222 201001 1 005 NIP. 19780613 200801 1 019 NIP. 19770326 200801 2 016

UPTD - WORKSHOP

HASMAN
NIP. 19640812 199303 1 011

KEPALA TATA USAHA UPTD WORKSHOP

MUDO MUHANDONO,S.Sos
NIP. 19820404 200801 1 011


